

"Be Careful what you wish for, it will come to you!"

Alizon

Table of Contents

Table of Contents	2
Introduction	4
How Spells Work	6
Tools and Ingredients	7
Candle Magic	10
Casting Spells that Really Work	12
Ridding Negative Energy	14
Enchanting Oils	18
The Protection Spell	20
Pink Rose Love Spell	21
Fertility Ritual	22
Lottery Winner Spell	23
Inspiration Spell	24
Abundance Spell	26
Prosperity Spell	28
Banishing Spell	29
Soul Mate Candle Spell	30
Healing Candle Spell	31
3 Silver Coins Money Spell	32
Mabon Ritual	34
Pink Candle Love Spell	35
Money Candle Spell	36
Reunite With An Ex Candle Spell	37
Psychic Ability Candle Spell	38
Attraction Spell Candle Spell	39
Prosperity Spell Candle Spell	40
Candle Love Spell	41
Exact Amount Money Spell	42
7 Day Money Spell	43
Desire Spell	49
24 Hour Money Spell Without Ingredients	50
Attraction Spells	52

Element Money Spells	54
Full Moon Ritual	56
Whisper Money Spell	58
Full Moon Money Spell	59
Witches Brew Dream Tea	60
Love Potion Tea	61
Love Potion (Alcoholic!)	62
Money Potion (Alcoholic!)	63
Money Incantation	64
Reasons a Spell Might not Work	65
Aura Cleansing	66
Your Magical Journal	72
Other Titles by Alizon	73

Introduction

In this book you will find Spells and Rituals, Potion Recipes and Witches Brew Recipes with the intention of enhancing your life in some way.

This book aims to allow your dreams to come true.

Everyone aspires to living a life that is healthy, wealthy and filled with happiness.

To have vibrant health is perhaps the most important gift to have, because without good health life isn't as good as it should be.

Imagine what your life could be like if you could make your dreams come true.

You may want to have a perfect romantic relationship in which you both share the same level of love, commitment, respect and loyalty.

You may want an abundant lifestyle so that any money worries simply disappear and you are able to live comfortably, treat your loved ones and help out the less fortunate.

Dreaming of becoming wealthy is also an important aspiration. This may be in terms of money but can also be having an abundant life filled with a loving family, true friends and fulfilling experiences.

And of course true happiness can be the difference between living a full and vibrant life, enjoying each second, of each hour of each day or just struggling and surviving.

Casting Spells can bring miraculous results very swiftly and can literally change your destiny for the better.

You may crave fame and fortune and desire to lead a celebrity lifestyle or you may wish to devote yourself to spiritual matters and help and heal animals.

Whatever your desires, casting Spells can make your dreams come true.

Spells can help you to better health and bring you constant good luck, improve you as a person and eradicate bad habits. Magic can make you more attractive to others.

Magic can give you new reasons for living. Magic is powerful and you should never underestimate its potential. Magic is a philosophy. You can use Magic to alter events and achieve what you want in life. All the Spells in this book have been created only in love and light, with harm to none and they do not bend the will of anyone. In this way you can be assured that all positive ways to allow you your wishes and desires to manifest are sought out.

Spells that work with the Law of Attraction are known to be very powerful and enable your wish or desire to be sent to the Universe swiftly and effectively.

Casting the Spells in this book will help purify and cleanse your Aura making you open and ready to receive positive energies and whatever you desire.

Casting Spells is similar to making a wish. So, within this book I hope your wishes come true!

We all make wishes. We all hope for good health, enough wealth, true love and real happiness. Real wishes are not just dreams that are unlikely to manifest. To make a real wish is akin to conducting a simple Magic Spell. But don't worry if you are not an expert Spell Caster or proficient in the art of witchcraft and Magic. Each year at your birthday, you close your eyes, concentrate on your wish, blow out the candle on your birthday cake and hope that your wish comes true.

Or you see a shooting star or toss a coin in a wishing well, you close your eyes, make your wish and hope it is granted. A similar process of concentration, focus and directing of energy up to the Universe occurs in real Magic Spell casting.

Just like prayers, wishes are pleas to the Universe to grant us what we wish for. Some wishes are granted just like some prayers are answered and some Magic Spells manifest. But how can you better ensure that your wishes will come true. Do you leave it in the hands of destiny and fate? Or do you take positive action to make sure that your wishes really do come true?

Yes, incredible as it sounds, by using the Law of Attraction combined with the power of real Magic you can attract to you whatever you desire, within reason. A Spell cannot turn a frog into a Prince, alter your height or change your eye colour!

Spell casting to make things better is as old a time itself. In its most basic terms Spell casting to attract wealth, attract love or attract prosperity etc. is simply the process of making a wish. Throughout the centuries and in ancient times people have prayed to their gods, made wishes or cast Magic Spells to help them manifest what they most desired. Their prayers have been answered, their wishes granted and their Magic Spells manifested.

How Spells Work

Discovering how Spells work can be a little bit disappointing for some people. As dedication, concentration and attention to details are what enable casting Spells to work.

The ability of imagination and positive thought to bring things into being is one of the first principles of Magic. Spell casting is an ancient art, which utilises the powers of nature and the mind to bring about a desired effect. Specific combinations of natural elements draw specific energies.

Along with the concentration involved in casting Spells to manifest things you desire into reality there is so much more to take into account.

A twitch of the nose or click of the fingers or muttering a few weird words is simply not enough for Spells that really work.

Just like religion and understanding the Universe and how it works, there are more questions than answers. So faith and belief that a Spell will work is vitally important.

Law of Attraction

Magic Spells work in tandem with the Law of Attraction. The Law of Attraction states that you attract to yourself that which you put the energy of your thoughts into. If you desire something, you can attract it to you by positively anticipating its arrival into your life. If your thoughts are constantly on positive outcomes and good results, then that is what you will manifest.

The very act of just thinking about a desired outcome creates positive and attracting energies. So, always keep a positive and optimistic outlook which will enable you to draw towards you what you most desire.

Tools and Ingredients

You will need very little in terms of tools and ingredients for all of the Spells and Rituals outlined in this book. Some coloured candles and basic herbs, essential oils plus some other natural ingredients are all you need.

I've selected the corresponding herbs, colour of candles, and type of oils etc. to add power and intention to a specific Spell. The specific energies are thus aligned to the purpose of the desired outcome of the Spell.

Herbs

Herbs have been used throughout the ages not just for their culinary flavourings. In the use of Magic certain herbs and plants are prized for the special range of Magical properties.

In Magic, herbs, flowers and plants are used for several purposes. Herbs can be used for purification, protection, banishing, divination, evoking and Spell casting.

These are the herbs you can use for some of the Spells contained in this book.

Lavender

Lavender is very cleansing, protective and strengthening. It is used in all positive Magic. I tend to use lavender in most of my Spell casting. A handful of dried lavender is wonderful to throw into a ritual bath too. I also adore lavender tea – it is so calming and stress relieving. Just use half a teaspoon of dried lavender, steep in boiling water for 5 minutes, strain and drink. Very soothing!

Rose Buds

These heavily scented wonderful dried rose buds are simply divine! Roses have been effectively used throughout the ages in love potions and in Love Spells and have long been associated as the symbol of true love. Use in any Love Spell you want to cast but also rose buds are good for increasing psychic ability, healing and general good luck. They are great to throw into a ritual bath and also to make a wonderful perfumed tea that is said to aid psychic awareness. I combine a couple of rose buds with a little lavender and chamomile to make a soothing tea before I Spell cast.

Chamomile

Chamomile is a wonderful floral herb, most commonly used in a soothing and calming tea. It is also excellent to throw a handful of the dried fragrant flowers into a

ritual bath. Magically, chamomile is great to use in Spells that involve drawing good luck and good fortune. It is also used to sharpen the mind and intellect and is therefore good for studying and exam success.

Mint

Magically, mint is used in Money Spells and Prosperity Spells. It is also good for gaining confidence, success and the motivation to accomplish. It makes the most wonderful mint tea and is so refreshing.

Thyme

The name Thyme comes from the Greek *thymos* meaning spirit or smoke. In mythical folklore, Thyme flowers were full of perfume and nectar for the bees, traditionally the messengers of the fairy world. It was believed that the soul of the deceased took up residence in the flowers of the Thyme plant, and that Thyme assured the passage of the deceased into the afterlife. Thyme is used in Healing Rituals and in Spells for good luck and success. It is said women who wear or carry Thyme are irresistible to men, and carrying sprigs in your pocket aids in developing your psychic abilities.

Rosemary

Rosemary was burnt at shrines in Ancient Greece to drive away evil spirits and illnesses. It was believed that a fresh twig beneath your pillow will keep away nightmares, or lay it under your bed for good night's sleep.

The Ancients were well acquainted with the shrub, which had a reputation for strengthening the memory. On this account it became the emblem of fidelity for lovers. Its magical properties include good luck, purification, protection, love and healing.

Bay Laurel

Ancient Greek mythology relates the tale of the sun god Apollo who pursued the uninterested nymph Daphne. Apollo was relentless until the gods granted her mercy by turning her into a laurel, or bay tree. The Greeks still refer to the tree that bears the bay leaf as Daphne. Apollo's priestess and Oracle of Delphi, is said to have chewed bay leaves as part of the ritual to foresee the future. Magically, bay laurel is used in Spells for increasing psychic ability, for purification and for strength.

Sage

Sage is used to purify any Magical workings. It is often burnt to purify and cleanse any space. It is associated with protection, wishes and prosperity. It is said, that if you want to make your dreams come true, put Sage leaves under your pillow. Sage is used in attraction Spells to bring wealth and prosperity and for wish manifestations.

Basil

Magically, Basil can be used in all Love Spells but in particular those for binding, ensuring fidelity and gaining commitment. Basil is also great for Money Spells and for use in promoting confidence. Place basil leaves in all corners of your house to aid protection and good luck.

Aura Cleansing

We are born with a clear, bright, glowing and vibrant Aura which attracts positive energies to us and repels negative energies. Over time the Aura can get tinged and tainted with dark shadows or clouds attracting unwanted negative energies. This blemished Aura can leave you feeling stressed, tired, unbalanced, unhappy and depressed. It can also attract even more negative energies, negative and strained relationships, difficult and testing circumstances and general feelings of struggle and stress.

You will need a bright and clean Aura for any Spell to work for you. Later I will outline the best ways to achieve this.

Candle Magic

Candle magic is perhaps the easiest and most recognisable form of Spell casting and is something you've probably already done many times over your lifetime.

The simple act of blowing out the candles on your birthday cake and making a wish is in fact a very basic form of Spell casting.

For Spells to manifest money and wealth one would normally use green candles, for love, sex and confidence the colours are red or pink.

Purple candles can be used to increase your psychic abilities. Blue is often used in healing Spells and for spiritual purity. But you can always use white candles as a substitute for any colour.

You will need to connect to your chosen candle by anointing it with essential oils that correspond to your wish, aim or goal.

Take a few drops of oil and while focusing on your intent gently rub the oil into the candle. Once anointed you can proceed with your Spell casting.

Directions

For many of the Spells contained within this book you will need to determine the directions of North, South, East and West. You can use a compass or by noting in which direction the sun rises which is always East.

"To Know, To Dare, To Will and To Keep Silent"

Successful Magic is dependent upon the principles underpinning the phrase of "To Know, To Dare, To Will and To Keep Silent". In order to combine all the necessary elements that make for successful Spell casting you must:

- Know Know yourself, have knowledge and have clear in your mind what you want to achieve from a Spell.
- Dare Have the courage of your convictions, have confidence in your abilities and take the necessary actions to put all that you know to good use to make an effective Spell.
- Will So you may know what you want, have the courage to get it, but do you really, really want it? An intense desire is the will you'll need to succeed.
- Keep Silent Making known to all and sundry what, why and how you have used your knowledge of Magic is as sure fire way to have any

Spell, at best not work. and at worst backfire upon you. A Spell is a request "spelled' out to the Universe. Let it be heard without interference. Give the Universe time and chance to hear the request and not be interfered with.

Casting Spells that Really Work

A number of factors need to be taken into consideration for Spells to work and help you.

In its most basic form a Spell is a set of steps that uses a specific formula.

And just as conducting a scientific experiment, baking a cake or learning to drive all need a formula to follow then so does successful Spell casting.

Energy exists in all things including thoughts, emotions and feelings along with tangible things such as humans, animals, plants etc.

Just like baking a wonderful, tasty and successful cake a Spell needs the correct ingredients in the correct amounts by using tools and utensils in the correct way.

Casting Spells is the manipulation and harnessing of specific energies combined with will, intent and action. The specific energies needed for Spells that work in the way they were intended need to be carefully cast.

A Spell that works best will have the least resistance against it. I'll give you a couple of examples of how Spells work.

Don't cast a Love Spell and then lock yourself away in your bedroom where Love can't find you.

Love yourself - because if we cannot, how can others love us. If we cannot love ourselves as we are, we must change. Magic will help us. In changing, we will become the sort of person that can attract the love that we want.

A person who can give and embrace love in equal measure will attract love.

Similarly don't cast a Money Spell and then spend all you have in a frenzy of expectation. Magic must have the room and freedom to work. It will manifest itself in ordinary but nevertheless, Magical ways. Magic is not the appearance of material things amidst puffs of smoke before your very eyes.

Magic will give you the ideas, actions and behaviours you need to enable you to get want you want in life. Make sure you go with the flow – don't swim against the tide of energy that Spells create.

To attract money and wealth we must become someone who already has plenty to give and offer the world. We must become rich in generosity and benevolence. To heal or be healed we must become the Healer. Be prepared to inspire and support others and you too will be inspired and supported.

When casting a Spell I concentrate on and visualise the desired result wanted. How that desire is achieved is for the Spell to conjure, without harm to anyone. Spells can and do work in very unexpected ways.

You should think of a Spell as a seed. A seed is a unit of consciousness that has a body, a charge and an intelligence which, given the proper conditions, will manifest itself into the world exerting an influence on the relevant subjects. Seeds are created, transmitted and earthed in order to achieve change – a change in one's world, life or identity. A Spell is a way of attracting energy and focusing it with your will to manifest change.

Once any Spell has been cast it is released and let go to the powers of the Universe. This is an essential aspect of the Spell casting process. Spells work on their own once they are cast.

If you conduct any magical working half-heartedly, with little thought to the ingredients, tools or wording you will only achieve half hearted results. So take great thought and care and give yourself the best chance of manifestation of your desires by taking each step of the Spell casting process seriously.

Remember that a Magic Spell cannot replace physical actions, only enhance them. So if you want to attract a soul mate into your life, you need to mix and socialise with lots of people. If you want a brilliant job, then you have to ensure your CV or resume is brilliant. If you want to win the lottery – then you have to buy a ticket!

I hope you enjoy your Spell casting journey!

Ridding Negative Energy

Even before you start Spell casting you need to be aware of the very real threat of negative energy. This can come from people, your home and even your own Aura.

Let's focus on negative people and bad luck to start with.

Negative people can hold you back and prevent you from living the type of life you want for yourself.

Their negativity can seep into your Aura and cause negative energies to surround you.

These negative energies prevent you from moving forward positively and can cause you to experience bad luck.

Negative people come in many shapes and sizes.

Negative people can include bullies, the self-absorbed, the overly needy, the overly critical, the over demanding, the self-victimizing and just the plain pessimistic.

The one thing that all negative personality types have in common is their desire to demand your time, your energy, your attention and to manipulate, control and convert your positive frame of mind to their way of thinking.

You will know how draining it is to be around them as they continually dwell on the negatives and suck the life out of anything remotely positive.

Of course, you will want to distance yourself from negative people or cut them out of your life for good, but this is not always possible.

Family, friends, teachers or work colleagues may be very negative but you may have to live, socialize, be taught by or work with them on a daily basis.

To protect yourself from soaking up too much of their negative energy there are some tactics you can adopt.

Try to avoid one on one conversations with a negative person. Include other positive people in the conversation if you can.

Invite a positive person to join you if you have a meeting or appointment with a negative person.

Keep conversations brief and bright and focus on only light topics. Do not be sucked into debates, arguments or heavy discussions on topics that are gloomy or deep. Rather than offering a listening ear, offer a helping hand. Give practical help and assistance rather than emotional support.

Finally, if you find yourself in a very negative situation you can cross your fingers so as to avoid the negative energy soaking into your Aura.

Ridding Negative Energy from Your Body, Aura and Home.

Before you commence Spell casting you will need to cleanse your body, cleanse your Aura and cleanse your home. This is rid negative energies impeding the Spell casting process.

Ritual Bathing

It's a great idea to purify yourself before beginning to cast a Spell. You can take a bath or shower, using sea salt, fragrant oils and the same herbs you will be using in your Spell.

For a bath, place fresh or dried herbs in a linen, muslin or cheesecloth square and tighten with string to form a secure pouch. You can add a handful of sea salt into the bath too.

You can use this method too in the shower by simply attaching the pouch to the showerhead and allowing the water to flow through it onto your body. Combine some sea salt with olive oil, Money Oil or Love Oil, (the recipes for these are coming up) to make a body scrub to.rub over your body before showering.

As promised here are some ways that you can cleanse your Aura.

Aura Cleansing with Sage

A very effective form of spiritual cleansing is that of using sage. Ignite a small leaf of white sage in a metal dish or container. Inhale the smoke that is emitted through your nose and mouth, holding it for about 10-30 seconds.

Also using sage in the form of a lit smudge stick and wafting the smoke around your body from head to toe is good for cleansing the Aura.

Aura Cleansing with Crystals

Lie down and place a Clear Quartz crystal upon your Brow Chakra, just between your eyes. Relax, meditate and visualise a white healing light emanating from the crystal and bathing your entire body in healing white light. This is brilliant form of spiritual cleansing.

Aura Healing Elixer

Another method for Aura healing using the power of crystals is that of creating an elixir. A crystal infused elixir can be sprayed around your body as a fine mist to cleanse your Aura. Choose one, two or three of your favourite crystals such as Rose Quartz, Moonstone, Carnelian or Aventurine. Place the crystals in a bottle and fill the bottle with spring water. Place the bottle outdoors overnight under the Moon. The next day you can use the crystal infused water as a spray or atomizer. Spray all around your body from head to toe.

Aura Cleansing with Flowers

Flower petals and blossoms can also be used for Aura healing by creating a spray. Similar to the method used for a crystal infused elixir, place flowers such as rose, honeysuckle, jasmine, orange blossom or almond blossom in spring water overnight.

You can combine the flowers with crystals for extra strength and potency. Again use the flower water as a spray or atomizer. Spray all around your body from head to toe.

Essential Oil Aura Cleansing

Essential oils of Cypress, Juniper and Cinnamon can be used for Aura cleansing. Place just a few drops on your finger tips and place on the back of your neck, your wrists and your inner ankles. Inhale the remainder of the essential oil from your fingers and breathe deeply.

You can also use this combination of essential oils in a burner and inhale the aroma. And/or place the mixture in a warm bath and bathe.

Elemental Aura Cleansing

The natural elements are probably one of the most effective forms of Aura cleansing.

Use the element of air in the form of a strong wind to cleanse your Aura. Standing against a strong wind helps release unwanted energies and naturally cleanses the Aura. Ocean breezes are particular beneficial as they contain ozone. Use the element of water to bathe in the ocean or sea, lake, stream or river. The purely natural water is of course very cleansing and is ideal for Aura cleansing.

Use the element of earth in the form of a mature and deep rooted tree. Hug the tree and feel the connection to the deep earth.

Use the element of fire in the form of powerful sunlight to energise and cleanse your Aura. Be careful to avoid sunburn.

Home Cleansing

To cleanse your home of negative energies place 3 pinches of sea salt and 3 pinches of dried sage into each corner of every room. Leave this for 24 hours, then collect it up and throw the mix away at least 9 paces from your home.

Next sprinkle with your fingers a few drops of water into each corner of every room and say each time:

"Banish all that is bad And allow all that is good."

Enchanting Oils

Enchanting objects and Correspondences (materials and things used in Spell Casting) is an intricate, sometimes complicated, and often time consuming process. It belongs to a more advanced treatise on Spell Casting but I have included some simple Enchantments that can be performed, and which will enhance even basic Spells and rituals.

Money Oil

To enchant oil for Money Spells you will need:

- Olive oil
- A silver coin
- A pinch of dried mint
- A pinch of dried rosemary
- A pinch of dried sage

Warm a couple of tablespoons of olive oil in a small pan, Pour the warm (not hot!) oil and add the other ingredients into a screw top glass jar or bottle. Shake the bottle for thirty seconds, all the while visualising yourself attracting money and what you can spend it on.

Leave the jar on a window ledge overnight on the evening of a Full Moon.

The following day you can commence using the Money Oil in any of the Spells throughout this book of Spells.

Additionally you can anoint yourself with oil after bathing or showering. Just rub a very small drop onto the palms of your hands, the soles of your feet and around your heart area. All the while visualising yourself attracting money and what you can spend it on. You can repeat this process every time you bathe.

It is also a good idea to use a drop of the money oil in your wallet or purse.

Love Oil

For Love Oil you will need:

- 2-3 Tablespoons Olive oil
- A few fresh (preferably) or dried rose petals
- A pinch of dried thyme
- A pinch of dried rosemary
- A pinch of dried sage

Gently warm the olive oil in a pan, Pour the warm oil (not hot) into a screw top glass jar or bottle and add the other ingredients, all the while visualising yourself attracting love towards you.

Leave the jar on a window ledge overnight on the evening of a Full Moon.

The following day you can commence using the Love Oil in any of the Spells throughout this book of Spells.

Additionally you can anoint yourself with oil after bathing or showering. Just rub a very small drop onto the palms of your hands, the soles of your feet and around your heart area. All the while visualising yourself attracting love towards you. You can repeat this process every time you bathe.

It is also a good idea to use a drop of the love oil behind your ears whenever you go outside.

The Protection Spell

You can choose to use this Spell on yourself before commencing any other Spell.

This Protection Spell should help to protect you physically, mentally and spiritually so that you are in a healthy state to draw towards you positive and protective energies.

You will need 3 candles - one white, one green, one purple.

Light the white candle and say:

'Protective energy burning light Protect my with mind energies bright'

Secondly light the green candle and say:

'Protective energy burning light Protect my body with energies bright'

Lastly light the purple candle and say:

'Protective energy burning light Protect my soul with energies bright'

Finally say:

'Mind, body, soul unite Protect my being with energies bright Good health bring henceforth to me With energies bright, So mote it be!'

Blow out all three candles wishing on each of them for protection.

Pink Rose Love Spell

This Love Spell is designed to help to draw to you an as yet unknown love interest or someone you would like a loving relationship with, or to enhance an established relationship. So it's a *One Love Spell Fits All* type of Spell.

Ideally cast the Spell at dusk on a Friday.

Firstly you'll need a white or pink candle, (you can anoint this with Love Oil). You'll also need a pink rose. Light the candle.

Scatter 7 rose petals around the base of the candle.

Say out loud 3 times:

"Love be mine with energies bright Send to me with love and light So mote it be!"

Next allow the candle to burn down for around 7 minutes . All the while visualising your desired outcome. Blow out the candle. Gather up the rose petals and place them under your pillow over night. The following morning remove the petals and throw them to the wind, again reciting the same words of the Spell.

Fertility Ritual

Tie a green ribbon around a bunch of fresh rosemary and place under your bed during your most fertile week.

Leave it there for a full 5 days and nights. After that time remove the ribbon and keep it with you for the whole of your pregnancy.

Take the rosemary to water - a stream, river, lake or ocean and throw the rosemary into the water.

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Bring my birth wish to me So mote it be!"

Lottery Winner Spell

For the first part of this Spell you must have 6 silver coins. It is rare to have actual silver coins in this day and age, so silver coloured coins will suffice.

Clap your hands 6 times and position the silver coins between your palms forming a prayer like position. Concentrate on what it feels like to win a jackpot lottery. Allow one number to surface to your conscious mind. When you have your first number in your mind, unclasp your hands and release the coins. On a piece of paper write down the first number, cover this number with one of the silver coins.

Repeat the clapping but only 5 times, holding the remaining five coins between your palms forming a prayer like position. Again concentrate on what it feels like to win a jackpot lottery. Allow a second number to surface to your conscious mind. When you have your second number in your mind, unclasp your hands and release the coins. Again write down the second number, covering this second number with another silver coin.

Repeat this process until you have all 6 numbers.

Use the same 6 coins to buy a lottery ticket using your six numbers.

Once you have your lottery ticket, which must be bought at least 24 hours before it is drawn, concentrate once more on what it feels like to win a jackpot lottery.

Clap your hands 6 times and repeat these words 6 times.

"Jackpot Lottery win be mine With harm to none And all be fine"

Inspiration Spell

This Inspiration Spell is designed to inspire, motivate and direct your energies to new exciting ventures, projects and goals utilising all your existing skills and talents fully.

- Sea Salt
- Water
- A red candle
- Pinch of dried sage

Four objects connected with your creative skills or successes, (these items could be a paintbrush, a pen, sewing thread, or a cup cake case!)

On a table place the following items.

A small glass or metal container filled with Sea Salt in the North position.

A red candle in the South position.

A bowl of water in the West position.

A glass or metal container filled with Dried Sage in the East position.

Place your 4 objects in the middle of the table.

Light the candle and dried sage. Hold the first of your success objects and silently explain what it is and how it represents a success or skill in your life. Repeat this with the remaining 3 items. (for example, "I used this pen to create a beautiful poem.")

Visualise the element of Air and look towards your dried sage and inhale deeply and say:

'I have the power of Air'

Visualise the element of Fire and look towards your altar candle, feel the heat from the candle on your hands and say:

'I have the power of Fire'

Visualise the element of Water and look towards your bowl of water and run your fingers through the water and say:

'I have the power of Water'

Visualise the element of Earth and look towards your container of salt and touch the salt and say:

'I have the power of Earth'

Look toward your four success objects and focus on all that you have achieved in your life so far: the obstacles you have overcome, the successes you have gained, the challenges you have taken on.

Say 3 times:

"The power of Earth, Air, Water and Fire Combine within me now to inspire Success in all that I choose to do My hopes and dreams and wishes too Bring henceforth to me So mote it be!"

Abundance Spell

This Spell will help to increase the abundance of health, wealth and happiness in your life.

- Dried Sage
- A white candle
- A small container to hold salt
- A small dish or bowl to hold water
- Dried Lavender

On a table place the following items.

A glass or metal container filled with Sea Salt in the North position.

A white candle in the South position.

Place a bowl of water in the West position.

A glass or metal container filled with Dried Sage in the East position.

Place a small dish of dried Lavender in the centre

Take a pinch of the dried Lavender and place on the palm of your hand. Turn to the North and blow the Lavender from your hand in the direction of North.

Say:

'By the powers of earth to the North Wind I blow Bring me abundance, make it so'

Take a pinch of the dried Lavender and place on the palm of your hand. Turn to the East and blow the Lavender from your hand in the direction of East.

Say:

'By the powers of air to the East Wind I blow Bring me abundance, make it so'

Take a pinch of the dried Lavender and place on the palm of your hand. Turn to the South and blow the Lavender from your hand in the direction of South.

Say:

'By the powers of fire to the South Wind I blow Bring me abundance, make it so'

Take a pinch of the dried Lavender and place on the palm of your hand. Turn to the West and blow the Lavender from your hand in the direction of West.

Say:

'By the powers of water to the West Wind I blow Bring me abundance, make it so'

Say 3 times:

'Bring henceforth to me With harm to none So mote it be'

Prosperity Spell

This Prosperity Spell will help to draw to you prosperity and wealth.

- A small container to hold salt
- A small dish or bowl to hold water
- A tall candle with holder (Green preferably)
- A copper coin
- Dried sage

Engrave your name onto the candle with the edge of the coin. Set the candle in a holder at the centre of your altar. Light the candle. Scatter the dried sage around the lighted candle.

Say:

'Grant to me my wish I make With harm to none for my sake Prosperity and wealth bring henceforth to me With blessings that I will surely see So mote it be!'

Banishing Spell

This Banishing Spell is cast for banishing and ridding negative entities such as bad habits or negative emotions.

- A small container to hold salt
- A small dish or bowl to hold water
- A tall candle in holder
- Lavender oil

Before you commence anoint your tall candle with the lavender oil by carefully and purposefully rubbing 3-5 drops of the oil all over the candle

Silently communicate all your problems that you experience in all aspects of your life, any addictions or bad habits, your relationships with family and friends, your finances, your health, your love life, your career, or the way you spend your time. Concentrate briefly on all the negatives you currently have in your life. When you can think of nothing else, light your tall anointed candle and say:

'I charge thee now with magical light By the Waning Moon of the night take all negativity from me So mote it be!'

Soul Mate Candle Spell

For a Spell to attract to you a Soul Mate use a pink candle anointed with rose oil or Love Oil.

In the south corner of a room and on the evening of a Full Moon take a pink rose petal and place in the candle holder before placing the candle there.

With your index finger of your dominant hand invisibly inscribe a heart symbol onto the candle.

Close your eyes and imagine yourself having your heart's desire. Open your eyes.

Light your candle

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light My heart's desire bring to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Allow the candle to burn down. (Do not leave the lit candle unattended!!!)

The following day bury the stub of candle wax and any debris contained within it into the soil of a garden or even a potted plant.

Healing Candle Spell

For a Spell for Healing either for yourself or others use a blue candle anointed with eucalyptus oil.

In the west corner of a room and on a Monday evening take a couple of strands of the subject's hair and place in the candle holder before placing the candle there.

With your index finger of your dominant hand invisibly inscribe the name of the person you require healing for onto the candle.

Light your candle

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Healing energies bring to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Allow the candle to burn down. (Do not leave the lit candle unattended!!!)

The following day bury the stub of candle wax and any debris contained within it into the soil of a garden or even a potted plant.

3 Silver Coins Money Spell

You will need the following ingredients to cast this Spell effectively:

- 4 small glass bowls or dishes
- About a tablespoon of salt
- About a teaspoon of sage
- A small tea light candle
- 3 silver coins

You might like to bathe before commencing this Spell and dress in clothing that is all white or all black. If you have silver jewelry put it on. Silver is a very attracting of positive energy and repellent of negative energy. Prepare yourself mentally for what you are about to do. Stand comfortably with your feet apart, close your eyes and breathe deeply and rhythmically.

Focus your mind on all that you desire to flow into your life. You will need to do this for a minimum of 2 minutes. Practice concentrating and focusing now before you commence the Spell casting. Concentrate on all that you desire.

Now you will need to determine the direction of East by noting in which direction the sun rises. On a table or desk place about a tablespoon of dried sage in the first dish facing eastwards. In the opposite direction which is West place another bowl filled with water. Next place a tea light candle into the third bowl and place this in the South direction. And finally take the final bowl and fill it with salt and place this in the direction North.

From the salt dish take pinches of salt to make a circle around all four dishes. When finished, throw a small pinch of salt over your shoulder. Set alight the dried sage until it emits a plume of smoke. Next light the tea light candle. Next dip your fingers in the water. With your wet fingers place the 3 silver coins in the middle. Now this is the point you'll need to focus your concentration.

Take time at this point to visualise all that you want in your life. For example if you want to live in a luxurious house picture in your mind exactly what style you want. How many bedrooms and bathrooms does it have? Visualise the colour scheme and decor. If you desire to live at the coast or in the countryside, visualise the location.

If you desire a luxury car, imagine the exact make and model. Visualise the colour you desire. Visualise the car's interior and all its features. Whatever you desire concentrate and picture in your mind exactly what you want. Be specific and particular. Do not be vague. Rather than say "I want more money" say "I want \$500,000 dollars within a year and a day". This is specific in detail and time frame.

Now you are ready to activate the power of the Spell by raising energy.

Visualise a white light flowing throughout your body forming a ball of light deep in your chest. Tense every muscle in your body until you feel 'fully charged'. With your right hand form an imaginary circle around the salt circle 3 times.

Now in whispered tones repeat these words 3 times:

"Pray be just In the universe I trust All I desire send to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Next release your raised energy to the Universe. Visualise the ball of light in your chest once more. Again tense all your muscles and begin to 'push' the energy upward. The stand comfortably with your feet apart and thrust your arms upwards and outwards to form a star shape with your body. Exhale and imagine sending this energy out into the air. When this is complete, stand with your feet together and touch each shoulder with opposite arms to form a cross against your chest.

Now that your Spell is complete blow out the candle, pour the water onto the burning sage to extinguish it. Throw outdoors the sage and salt. Next gather up the 3 silver coins. Place one silver coin under your bed. Always keep the next silver coin close to you. Perhaps in a pocket, wallet or purse. Never spend this coin. Bury the final silver coin in soil. Perhaps in a garden or even under a potted plant.

Mabon Ritual

Mabon is normally celebrated on the Autumn Equinox September 21 in the Northern Hemisphere. Mabon is a Sabbat celebrated by Pagans, Druids and. Wiccans. It is the time when both day and night are of equal length.

Throughout the ages this significant event marking the Autumn Equinox has been celebrated as a time for thanksgiving and a time to count your blessings.

Mabon is also known as a time of harmony, balance and reaping rewards.

To ensure you don't miss out on the special energies created at this most harmonious time you can try the following Mabon Ritual. This is aimed to rid negativity and promote positivity that will allow you good fortune, renewed health, prosperity and happiness.

You will need:

- a light coloured candle
- A flame proof dish
- A piece of dark coloured paper
- A piece of light coloured paper
- A light coloured envelope
- A gold pen
- A pinch of salt
- A pinch of Thyme

At dusk on the Autumn Equinox light the candle. With the gold pen write out carefully three things you wish to rid from your life on the dark coloured paper. These could be things like 'poverty', 'loneliness', 'poor self esteem' etc. Take the pinch of salt and sprinkle on the flame of the candle. Now carefully set alight the dark coloured paper from the flame of the candle and let it burn in the flameproof dish.

Next write out carefully on the light coloured paper three things you wish to enter your life over the coming year. These could be things like 'abundant wealth', 'vibrant health', 'true love' etc. Fold the paper three times and place in the envelope.

Take the pinch of Thyme and sprinkle over the flame of the candle. Carefully drip some of candle wax from the lit candle onto the back of the envelope to form a symbolic seal. Next blow out the candle and focus on the things you most want to enter your life. Place the sealed envelope under your pillow and with luck, love and light your wishes should be granted within a year and a day.

Pink Candle Love Spell

Ingredients for this Spell:

- A tall pink candle in holder or candlestick
- A long stemmed pink rose
- A small sharp knife
- A small container to hold salt
- A small bowl to hold water
- Rose Oil or Love Oil
- Dried Rosemary in a small dish

Set the bowls of salt and water onto a table. The salt should be placed in the direction of North, the water to the West.

Place a candlestick to hold your pink candle to the South position and place a small dish to the East holding a small amount of Dried Rosemary.

With the knife carefully engrave the words " Bringeth love to me" upon the pink candle.

Next anoint your engraved pink candle with the rose oil or Love Oil by carefully and purposefully rubbing 3-5 drops of the oil all over the candle. Think of your ideal lover as you gently rub the oil into the wax until the candle is covered and evenly scented.

Set the candle in its holder.

Place the pink rose in the centre position.

Carefully set light to the dried Rosemary to form a smoky incense. Next dip your ring finger of your left hand into the salt then into the water. Finally light the pink candle and repeat 3 times the following:

'Grant to me my wish I make Of love to give and love to take Equal and fair bring henceforth to me Love to share So mote it be'

When you feel the time is right blow out the candle. Take the rose and carefully remove the petals and place in the water bowl. Set the rose petal water aside for 3 days and then use as a rinse for your hair on the fourth day.

Money Candle Spell

For a Spell for money use a green candle anointed with Money Oil or basil, mint or rosemary oil.

In the north corner of a room and on a Thursday evening take a small silver coin and place in the candle holder before placing the candle there.

With your index finger of your dominant hand invisibly inscribe an amount of money you need onto the candle.

Light your candle.

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Wealth bring to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Allow the candle to burn down. (Do not leave the lit candle unattended!!!)

Reunite With An Ex Candle Spell

For a Spell to reunite with an ex use a pink or red candle anointed with Love Oil or Rose, Neroli or Jasmine Oil.

Take a few drops of oil and while focusing on your intent gently rub the oil into the candle. Once anointed you can proceed with your Spell casting.

In the south corner of a room and on a Friday evening take a pink or red rose petal and place in the candle holder before placing the candle there.

With your index finger of your dominant hand invisibly inscribe the name of the person you desire to return to you onto the candle.

Light your candle.

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light My heart's desire bring to me With harm to none So mote it be"

Allow the candle to burn down. (Do not leave the lit candle unattended!!!)

Psychic Ability Candle Spell

For a Spell to increase your Psychic Ability use a purple candle anointed with peppermint oil.

Take a few drops of oil and while focusing on your intent gently rub the oil into the candle. Once anointed you can proceed with your Spell casting.

In the east corner of a room and on a Monday evening take a couple of strands of your hair and place in the candle holder before placing the candle there.

With your index finger of your dominant hand invisibly inscribe your name onto the candle.

Light your candle.

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Psychic skills bring to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Allow the candle to burn down. (Do not leave the lit candle unattended!!!)

Attraction Spell Candle Spell

For a Spell to attract the attention of someone you have your eye on use a pink or red candle anointed with Love Oil or Rose, Neroli or Jasmine Oil.

Take a few drops of oil and while focusing on your intent gently rub the oil into the candle. Once anointed you can proceed with your Spell casting.

In the south corner of a room and on a Friday evening take a pink or red rose petal and place in the candle holder before placing the candle there.

With your index finger of your dominant hand invisibly inscribe the name of the person you desire onto the candle.

Light your candle.

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light My heart's desire bring to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Allow the candle to burn down. (Do not leave the lit candle unattended!!!)

Prosperity Spell Candle Spell

For a Spell for Prosperity use a green candle anointed with Money Oil or basil, mint or rosemary oil.

Take a few drops of oil and while focusing on your intent gently rub the oil into the candle. Once anointed you can proceed with your Spell casting.

In the north corner of a room and on a Thursday evening take five apple pips and place in the candle holder before placing the candle there.

With your index finger of your dominant hand invisibly inscribe your name onto the candle.

Light your candle

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Prosperity bring to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Allow the candle to burn down. (Do not leave the lit candle unattended!!!)

Candle Love Spell

For a Spell to have someone fall in love with you use a pink or red candle anointed with Love Oil Rose, Neroli or Jasmine Oil.

Take a few drops of oil and while focusing on your intent gently rub the oil into the candle. Once anointed you can proceed with your Spell casting.

In the south corner of a room and on the evening of a Full Moon take a pink or red rose petal and place in the candle holder before placing the candle there.

With your index finger of your dominant hand invisibly inscribe your name and the name of the person you desire onto the candle.

Light your candle

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light My heart's desire bring to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Allow the candle to burn down. (Do not leave the lit candle unattended!!!)

Exact Amount Money Spell

This simple Money Spell is for amounts of money to come to you, with harm to none and is for need rather than greed.

Take a piece of paper and write the exact amount of money you need to clear a debt, pay a bill or buy the thing you specifically need at the time. Do this thoughtfully and carefully and visualise your desired outcome and imagine yourself already in possession of what you seek.

Next inscribe with the edge of a gold or silver coin a dollar, pound or euro symbol onto a green candle. Take a few drops of peppermint oil, if you have some, and anoint the candle and concentrate on an amount of money, or a bill that needs paying or the clearance of a debt. Visualise again your desired outcome and imagine yourself already in possession of what you seek.

Next light your candle and allow it to burn down for at least 10 minutes – longer if you have time available. All the while visualising your desired outcome.

Take your piece of paper and fold it into 3 and again into 3 to form a small envelope. Place the coin you used earlier into the envelope. Next carefully drip some melted wax from the candle to form a seal on the envelope.

Say out loud:

"Money I need come to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Blow out your candle and keep your sealed envelope in a safe place where no one else can touch it.

7 Day Money Spell

You might like to bathe before commencing any Spell and dress in clothing that is all white or all black. If you have silver jewelry put it on. Silver is a very attracting of positive energy and repellent of negative energy. Prepare yourself mentally for what you are about to do.

Day 1 - Enchanting Money Oil

On day 1 you will need to make your Enchanted Money Oil. This is the first Spell you will conduct. You will need the following ingredients.

- Olive oil
- A silver coin
- A pinch of dried mint
- A pinch of dried rosemary
- A pinch of dried sage

Warm 2-3 tablespoons of olive oil in a pan. Pour the warm oil (not hot) and add the other ingredients into a screw top glass jar or bottle. Shake the bottle for thirty seconds, all the while visualising yourself attracting money and what you can spend it on.

Place the bottle in the north corner of your bedroom.

Now say these words out load 3 times:

"Concoct this recipe with energies bright To form a Money Oil with love and light With harm to none So mote it be!"

The following day you can commence using the Money Oil in the remaining 6 Money Spells.

Additionally you can anoint yourself with oil after bathing or showering. Just rub a very small drop onto the palms of your hands, the soles of your feet and around your heart area. All the while visualising yourself attracting money and what you can spend it on. You can repeat this process every time you bathe.

It is also a good idea to use a drop of the money oil in your wallet or purse.

Day 2 - Green Candle Money Spell

This Money Spell is designed to help to draw to you money from a variety of sources, with harm to none.

Firstly you'll need a green candle, (you can anoint this with the Money Oil) and a metal dish of dried sage. Light the candle. Light the dried sage until it emits plumes of smoke.

Say out loud 3 times:

"Money be mine with energies bright Send to me with love and light With harm to none So mote it be!"

Next allow the candle to burn down for around 5 minutes . All the while visualising your desired outcome. Blow out the candle.

Day 3 - Sage Money Spell

Burn some dried sage and with your finger invisibly inscribe an amount of money you need and also your name into the smoke from the sage. Inhale some of the smoke through your nose and exhale through your mouth. Whisper your name and the amount money you desire as you exhale.

Close your eyes and imagine yourself being in possession of the money you want.

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Money I need come to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Day 4 - Fehu Rune Money Spell

You'll need just two items for this Spell:

- A candle (you can anoint this with Money Oil)
- A silver or gold coin

First take your candle and with the edge of the coin carve onto it the sacred symbol of the Rune Fehu.

This symbol is known as the Money Rune and is the key to unlocking the Universal energies necessary to attract to you wealth.

Next light your candle

Stare at the candle as it burns and visualise exactly the amount of money you want and what you will do with it.

Whisper aloud 3 times:

"Send forth my wish within this Spell With harm to none and all be well May air, water, earth and fire unite To send to me with energies bright All that I wish for Bring forth to me Heed this Spell So mote it be!"

Blow out the candle after 9 minutes.

Day 5 - Elements Wealth Spell

For your Day 5 Spell youwill need the following:

- Sea Salt
- Water
- A Green Candle
- Water

On a table place the following items:

A glass or metal container filled with Sea Salt in the North position.

A green candle in the South position.

Place a bowl of water in the West position.

A glass or metal container filled with Dried Sage in the East position.

Set alight the Dried Sage and say:

"Air from the East send me inspiration"

Light the candle and say:

"Fire from the South send me motivation"

Take a pinch of salt and throw it over your left shoulder and say:

"Earth from the North keep me grounded"

Take a sip of water from the bowl and say:

"Water from the West send me wealth unbounded"

Repeat the following 3 times:

"May the elements be within and without me Wealth to bring with harm to none So mote it be!"

Let the candle burn for 9 minutes, then blow it out.

Day 6 - Become Debt Free Spell

You will need:

- A piece of paper
- A black pen
- One green candle (you can anoint this with Money Oil)
- A flame proof dish
- A pinch of salt
- A pinch of dried Basil

Light the green candle. With the black pen write out the amount of debt you have. Fold the piece of paper 3 times.

Take the pinch of salt and sprinkle on the flame of the candle. Now carefully set alight the paper from the flame of the candle and let it burn in the flameproof dish. Concentrate and watch as the flames burns away the paper.

Take the pinch of Basil and sprinkle over the flame of the candle. Next blow out the candle and imagine how you will feel to be completely debt free.

The next day scatter the ashes of the burnt paper in a park, forest or anywhere there are trees at least one mile from where you live. With your feet, tread on the burnt ashes forcing them into the ground.

Turn your back on the trodden ashes and say 3 times aloud.

"Banish all I owe So I am debt free With harm to none So mote it be!"

Day 7 - 3 Silver Coins Money Spell

You will need the following ingredients to cast this Spell effectively:

- 4 small glass bowls or dishes
- About a tablespoon of salt
- About a teaspoon of sage
- A small tea light candle
- 3 silver coins

Focus your mind on all that you desire to flow into your life. You will need to do this for a minimum of 2 minutes. Practice concentrating and focusing now before you commence the Spell casting. Concentrate on all that you desire.

Now you will need to determine the direction of East by noting in which direction the sun rises. On a table or desk place about a teaspoon of dried sage in the first dish facing eastwards. In the opposite direction which is West place another bowl filled with water. Next place a tea light candle into the third bowl and place this in the South direction. And finally take the final bowl and fill it with salt and place this in the direction of North.

From the salt dish take pinches of salt to make a circle around all four dishes. When finished, throw a small pinch of salt over your shoulder. Set alight the dried sage until it emits a plume of smoke. Next light the tea light candle. Next dip your fingers in the water. With your wet fingers place the 3 silver coins in the middle. Now this is the point you'll need to focus your concentration.

Take time at this point to visualise all that you want in your life. For example if you want to live in a luxurious house picture in your mind exactly what style you want. How many bedrooms and bathrooms does it have? Visualise the colour scheme and decor. If you desire to live at the coast or in the countryside, visualise the location.

If you desire a luxury car, imagine the exact make and model. Visualise the colour you desire. Visualise the car's interior and all its features. Whatever you desire concentrate and picture in your mind exactly what you want. Be specific and particular. Do not be vague. Rather than say "I want more money" say "I want \$500,000 dollars within a year and a day". This is specific in detail and time frame.

Now you are ready to activate the power of the Spell by raising energy.

Visualise a white light flowing throughout your body forming a ball of light deep in your chest. Tense every muscle in your body until you feel 'fully charged'. With your right hand form an imaginary circle around the salt circle 3 times. Now in whispered tones repeat these words 3 times:

"Pray be just In the universe I trust All I desire send to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Next release your raised energy to the Universe. Visualise the ball of light in your chest once more. Again tense all your muscles and begin to 'push' the energy upward. The stand comfortably with your feet apart and thrust your arms upwards and outwards to form a star shape with your body. Exhale and imagine sending this energy out into the air. When this is complete, stand with your feet together and touch each shoulder with opposite arms to form a cross against your chest.

Now that your Spell is complete blow out the candle, pour the water onto the burning sage to extinguish it. Throw outdoors the sage and salt. Next gather up the 3 silver coins. Place one silver coin under your bed. Always keep the next silver coin close to you. Perhaps in a pocket, wallet or purse. Never spend this coin. Bury the final silver coin in soil. Perhaps in a garden or even under a potted plant.

Desire Spell

Light an incense stick or burn some dried sage and with your finger invisibly inscribe the name of the person you desire and also your name into the smoke from the incense or sage. Inhale some of the smoke through your nose and exhale through your mouth. Whisper the name of your heart's desire as you exhale.

Close your eyes and imagine yourself being together in a perfect relationship.

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Love I need come to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

24 Hour Money Spell Without Ingredients

This is an easy 24 Hour Money Spell with no ingredients.

The only thing you'll need for this Spell is an alarm clock or phone alarm because you need to do this Spell over a 24 hour period. Commencing at six o'clock in the evening, then again at twelve midnight, six o'clock in the morning and then finally twelve o'clock midday.

This is great Spell because it doesn't need any equipment or any ingredients, there's no lighting of candles or incense. You just need an alarm clock.

Now to commence your 24 Hour Money Spell you need to prepare yourself physically and mentally for what you are about to do.

You must take this seriously and you must be 18 or over to cast this Spell.

Just before 6.00pm take a bath or shower before commencing and be aware of the water and its pure and cleansing properties. Acknowledge the power of the water as it flows around your body.

You can either remain naked after bathing or dress in all white or all black. At 6.00pm stand comfortably and concentrate on what you most desire. This could be a luxury car, a spacious home, enough money to clear your debts, a specific amount of money or anything else you desire. Take a few deep breaths.

Drink a full glass of water.

Whisper these words 3 times:

"My heart's desire Bring forth to me With harm to none!"

Do not leave your home as the evening wears on and only interact with others if it is entirely necessary.

Do things that you find relaxing and retire to bed. Don't forget to set an alarm for just before midnight.

At midnight with your index finger invisibly inscribe onto your pillow the exact amount of money you want. Do this 3 times

Whisper these words 3 times:

"My heart's desire Bring forth to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Set your alarm to get up at 6.00am.

As 6.00am stand comfortably and click your fingers three times. Then bring your hands close to your chest to form a praying position. Tense every muscle in your body and when you feel ready begin to relax. Visualise once more all that you desire.

Whisper these words 3 times:

"My heart's desire Bring forth to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Try to have a quiet morning with minimal interaction with others.

As midday approaches, stand comfortably and with your arms outstretched towards the heavens

Whisper these words 3 times.

"My heart's desire Bring forth to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Now you need to be patient as you allow your Spell to reach the heavens and to work its Magic. This can be as short as within one day or as long as a year and a day. But you simply must be positive in the belief that your Spell will work. By remaining positive you surround yourself with positive energy which is essential for any Spell to work.

Attraction Spells

Attraction Spells help the power of attraction along and are designed to surround you with positive energies, rid negative energies and draw towards you who or what you want to attract.

Water Attraction Spell

If you are at the beach, lakeside or riverside, pick up a pebble and with your finger invisibly inscribe the name of the person you desire onto the pebble.

Add your name to the other side. Close your eyes and imagine yourself being together in a perfect relationship.

Open your eyes then toss the pebble into the water.

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Attract to me (insert name) So mote it be!"

Air Attraction Spell

On a windy day take a leaf from a tree and with your finger invisibly inscribe the name of the person you desire onto the leaf.

Add your name to the other side. Close your eyes and imagine yourself being together in a perfect relationship. Open your eyes then throw the leaf into the wind.

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Attract to me (insert name) So mote it be!"

Fire Attraction Spell

In front of an open fire take a piece of paper and write the name of the person you desire onto the paper with a red pen.

Add your name to the other side. Close your eyes and imagine yourself being together in a perfect relationship.

Open your eyes then throw the piece of paper into the fire.

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Attract to me (insert name) So mote it be!"

Earth Attraction Spell

Take a piece of paper and write the name of the person you desire onto the paper with a red pen.

Add your name to the other side. Close your eyes and imagine yourself being together in a perfect relationship.

Open your eyes then bury the piece of paper into the soil of your garden or a potted plant.

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Attract to me (insert name) So mote it be!"

Element Money Spells

Using the Elements to enhance your Spells is particularly effective, and so these special Money Spells aim to utilise the elements in specific Spell Castings.

Water Money Spell

If you are at the beach, lakeside or riverside, pick up a pebble and with your finger invisibly inscribe an amount of money you need onto the pebble.

Add your name to the other side. Close your eyes and imagine yourself being in possession of the money you want. Open your eyes then toss the pebble into the water.

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Money I need come to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Air Money Spell

On a windy day take a leaf from a tree and with your finger invisibly inscribe an amount of money you need onto the leaf.

Add your name to the other side. Close your eyes and imagine yourself being in possession of the money you want. Open your eyes then throw the leaf into the wind.

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Money I need come to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Fire Money Spell

In front of an open fire take a piece of paper and write an amount of money you need onto the paper with a green pen. Add your name to the other side. Close your eyes and imagine yourself being in possession of the money you want.

Open your eyes then throw the piece of paper into the fire.

"Say out loud 3 times: With energies bright In love and light Money I need come to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Earth Money Spell

Take a piece of paper and write an amount of money you need onto the paper with a green pen.

Add your name to the other side. Close your eyes and imagine yourself being in possession of the money you want.

Open your eyes then bury the piece of paper into the soil of your garden or a potted plant.

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Money I need come to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Full Moon Ritual

This Ritual needs to be performed on the evening of a Full Moon. Always be aware of the dates of the Moon Cycles. Keep them listed in a Journal dedicated to your Spell and other Spiritual work. A Magical Journal, if you will.

We are all aware of the powerful Law of Attraction and its potential for major Money manifestation. We all know about affirmations, positive thinking and setting our intentions out to the Universe so that we Conceive, Believe and Receive all that we want for ourselves. But how many of us are aware of, and in tune with, the mysterious powers of the Full Moon?

The Moon has a powerful effect on the tides and on us. Without the Moon there would no life on earth.

The Earth is made up of almost two-thirds water in the form of the oceans, seas, lakes and rivers. We as humans, have a similar make up with two thirds of the human body consisting of water. Understanding the energy of the Moon and the effect it has on us, can help you to connect with and use those energies in your daily life to manifest money, wealth and success.

Many major religions use the phases of the Moon in their religious calendars to coincide with significant and meaningful religious dates.

From ancient times we have been under the Moon's spell. The mysterious pull of the Moon on the Earth, how it affects the oceans, together with its impact on people's thoughts, moods and actions, has fascinated people since ancient times.

The Moon energy influences our moods, feelings and emotions. And during a Full Moon this is magnified. So you may want to tap into this powerful Moon energy to send your intentions to the Universe in your desire for abundance. The special Moon energy is increased during a Full Moon and its power to influence and shape your destiny is magnified.

By utilizing the very special and powerful Full Moon energy you can attract to you whatever you most desire. Whether you want more money, more love, more confidence, more sex, more control, more strength, more power, more success or more happiness the energy of the Full Moon can help you.

There's no limit to what you can attract. Whatever you desire can be yours.

The only requirement to attracting exactly what you want is that your requests are for positive purposes and harm no one.

On the evening of the Full Moon stand with your feet apart and your arms outstretched looking towards the Full Moon and repeat these words 3 times in whispered tones.

"Pray be just In the Moon I trust. All that I wish for Bring forth to me Heed this plea So mote it be!"

Whisper Money Spell

Light an incense stick or burn some dried sage and with your finger invisibly inscribe an amount of money you need and also your name into the smoke from the incense or sage. Inhale some of the smoke through your nose and exhale through your mouth. Whisper your name and the amount money you desire as you exhale.

Close your eyes and imagine yourself being in possession of the money you want.

Whisper 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Money I need come to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Full Moon Money Spell

On the evening of a Full Moon go to a body of water - lake, river, stream or ocean. With both hands outstretched towards the sky offer a small silver coin up to the Moon.

Close your eyes and imagine yourself being in possession of the money you want. Open your eyes then throw the coin into the water.

At the water's edge of a beach

Say out loud 3 times:

"With energies bright In love and light Money I need come to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Witches Brew Dream Tea

This is a wonderful Witches brew prophetic dream tea that you can drink just before bedtime. Hopefully it will give you insight whilst you dream. It's a traditional dream potion to assist in finding the truth in situations while dreaming.

Recipe for Dream Tea

Prepare a mix of the following dried herbs:

- 3 pinches Mint
- 1 pinch Sage
- 1 pinch Lavender
- 2 pinches Chamomile
- 2 pinches Rosemary

The blend should give you enough blended dream tea for nine days.

Each evening for nine consecutive days pour boiling water over one teaspoon of the blend. Allow to steep for five minutes. Add honey to taste.

Sip the tea and say 3 times aloud:

"As I sip this dream tea Slumber deep allow me Dream of truth for me to see So mote it be!"

Repeat this process for another eight days.

Love Potion Tea

This is a wonderful love potion that you can drink on its own or to accompany a Love Spell you are casting. Like many Love Spells this ritual is best begun on the evening of a Full Moon.

Prepare a mix of the following dried herbs:

- 3 pinches of Rosemary
- 3 pinches Lavender
- 3 pinches Chamomile
- 9 Rosebuds

As you mix the blend with a wooden spoon, think of the lover you want to attract to you. Take care with this part of the process and focus on who exactly you want to draw towards you. Focus on their qualities, their strengths and their gifts and talents.

When you are ready say aloud 3 times:

"Mix combine to bring to me A true love for all to see!"

The blend should give you enough blended love tea for nine days.

Each evening for nine consecutive days pour boiling water over one teaspoon of the blend, (including one rosebud). Allow to steep for five minutes and strain. Add honey to taste.

Sip the tea and say 3 times aloud:

"One true love bring forth to me Two hearts combine So mote it be!"

Repeat this process for another eight days.

Love Potion (Alcoholic!)

For this potent Love Potion you will need:

- Rose petals from two pink roses
- 2 measures of vodka or white rum
- I spoon of honey
- A pinch of sea salt

Gently warm the vodka or rum in a pan and stir in the honey and add the salt.

Remove mixture from the heat and allow to cool. Next prepare to carefully stir in the rose petals one by one. Kiss each petal and whisper "love be mine" as you stir in each one with a wooden spoon, visualising all the while about your heart's desire.

Put the lid on the pan and set aside for 24 hours.

Next day, strain the liquid and pour into a glass bottle.

For the next 9 days, take 9 drops of the liquid in a glass of water. Whilst drinking the water, visualising all the while about your heart's desire.

Money Potion (Alcoholic!)

For this Potion gather together:

- 9 Fresh Mint leaves
- 2 measures of vodka or white rum
- I spoon of honey
- A pinch of sea salt

Warm the vodka or rum in a pan and stir in the honey and add the salt.

Remove mixture from the heat and allow to cool. Next prepare to carefully stir in the fresh mint leaves one by one. Hold each leaf between your palms in a prayer like manner and whisper "money be mine with harm to none" as you stir in each one with a wooden spoon, visualising all the while about your life with limitless money.

Put the lid on the pan and set aside for 24 hours.

Next day, strain the liquid and pour into a glass bottle.

For the next 9 days, take 9 drops of the liquid in a glass of water. Whilst drinking the water, visualising all the while about your life with limitless money.

Money Incantation

Repeat this Money Chant at least 9 times before you go to bed.

Before you commence clap your hands nine times, then hold your arms aloft to the sky as if you are about to catch a falling object.

Now say at least 9 times:

"I am open to receive Limitless money In this I believe With harm to none And all be well!"

Reasons a Spell Might not Work

What happens if your Spells aren't working?

Here are some of the reasons a Spell might not work.

The Universe Has Other Plans For You

Despite what you feel is in your best interests, the Universe might have other plans for you that no one could have foreseen, or what you want and wish for, is not in your future best interests.

Imagine that just around the corner is someone or something that you can't see, someone or something that will bring you the happiness you crave and deserve. Wanting only what you can see will not always bring you what you want.

You Are Being Protected From Harm

There might be something about what you wish for that is unhealthy, or will lead to unhappiness for you. For example, the man who you wish to reunite with you might want to cause you harm, or is a bad person in ways you are unaware of.

Lack of Faith and Positive Belief

If you are sceptical about Magic and Spell casting, or are wracked with doubts about the Spell or whether it is really what you want, then this negative emotion will have a negative effect on the Spell. All emotion is energy and doubts, fears and mistrust are negative forms of this energy. Spell work is positive energy, energy you must be able to receive freely. If you are shrouded in negativity, this positive energy can't get through.

Obsessing About The Spell Work And When It Will Manifest

When a Spell is Cast, the work is done, and any obsessing about when, how or if it will manifest will obstruct the Spell from manifesting. The best advice is to let go, and let things unfold in their own time and in their own way, even if things gets worse, or you can't see how things will progress.

Aura Cleansing

Aura Cleansing is a form of spiritual healing to help heal, cleanse and repair damaged, dull and clouded auras. An aura is a luminous energy field that surrounds all living things. Ideally the aura should be clear, bright, glowing and contain vibrant colours.

However the aura can become tainted with dark shadows or clouds which attract unwanted negative energies. This tainted aura can leave you feeling ill, tired, down, unbalanced and depressed. Worse still it can attract more negative energies and fail to attract positive energies. This vicious circle can lead to more challenges and difficulties being drawn towards you.

Sometimes known as an Aura Healing, an Aura Cleansing can combat negative energies and help clean, brighten and heal the Aura.

Cleansing auras can be done by a variety of methods.

Aura Cleansing with Sage

A very effective form of spiritual cleansing is that of using sage. Ignite a small leaf of white sage in a metal dish or container. Inhale the smoke that is emitted through your nose and mouth, holding it for about 10-30 seconds.

Also using sage in the form of a lit smudge stick and wafting the smoke around your body from head to toe is good for cleansing the Aura.

Aura Cleansing with Crystals

Lie down and place a Clear Quartz crystal upon your Brow Chakra, just between your eyes. Relax, meditate and visualise a white healing light emanating from the crystal and bathing your entire body in healing white light. This is brilliant form of spiritual cleansing.

Aura Healing Elixer

Another method for Aura healing using the power of crystals is that of creating an elixir. A crystal infused elixir can be sprayed around your body as a fine mist to cleanse your Aura. Choose one, two or three of your favourite crystals such as Rose Quartz, Moonstone, Carnelian or Aventurine. Place the crystals in a bottle and fill the bottle with spring water. Place the bottle outdoors overnight under the Moon. The next day you can use the crystal infused water as a spray or atomizer. Spray all around your body from head to toe.

Aura Cleansing with Flowers

Flower petals and blossoms can also be used for Aura healing by creating a spray. Similar to the method used for a crystal infused elixir, place flowers such as rose, honeysuckle, jasmine, orange blossom or almond blossom in spring water overnight.

You can combine the flowers with crystals for extra strength and potency. Again use the flower water as a spray or atomizer. Spray all around your body from head to toe.

Essential Oil Aura Cleansing

Essential oil of a combination of Cypress, Juniper, Cinnamon and Diktamos can used for Aura cleansing and Aura healing. Place just a few drops on your finger tips and place on the back of your neck, your wrists and your inner ankles. Inhale the remainder of the essential oil from your fingers and breathe deeply.

You can also use this combination of essential oils in a burner and inhale the aroma. And/or place the mixture in a warm bath and bathe.

Elemental Aura Cleansing

The natural elements are probably one of the most effective forms of spiritual healing.

Use the element of air in the form of a strong wind to cleanse your Aura. Standing against a strong wind helps release unwanted energies and naturally cleanses the Aura. Ocean breezes are particular beneficial as they contain ozone.

Use the element of water to bathe in the ocean or sea, lake, stream or river. The purely natural water is of course very cleansing and is ideal for aura healing.

Use the element of earth in the form of a mature and deep rooted tree. Hug the tree and feel the connection to the deep earth.

Use the element of fire in the form of powerful sunlight to energise and cleanse your aura. Be careful to avoid sunburn.

Crown Chakra Clearing

The Chakras are the invisible cogwheels within our bodies that if kept open and free flowing keep us healthy and happy. When they are blocked problems will occur with mental, emotional and physical health. Free flowing Chakras help you to process the universal energies that are around your Aura and within you. An Aura is the luminous energy field that surrounds you.

The Crown Chakra is the seventh of the seven major Chakras that run from the base of the spine and up to the crown of the head. It is to be found on the top of the head. It directs the spiritual connection we have to the Universe, God, Goddess, the Spirit realm, Guides and Angels etc. This seventh Chakra ensures you are connected to universal sources of energy.

When the Crown Chakra is working to full effect it provides powerful mental strength and inspiration. It gives us a sense of right and wrong and ensures our acts are well motivated based on care and consideration.

A balanced Crown Chakra allows a person to be in tune with their intuition, receptive to psychic connections and be inspirational.

Blocked Chakras can cause a variety of dysfunctions and physical and mental illnesses. If your seventh Chakra is blocked or not energised and balanced you can experience feelings of being superior and arrogant. You may feel you are above everyone else in intelligence, judgement and the actions you take. When this Chakra is blocked it can lead to feeling distrustful, a loss of meaning or identity or lack of purpose in life.

Physically you can feel tired, lack lustre and drained. Physical ailments associated when this Chakra is blocked are normally related to the muscular system, skeletal system and the skin.

Mentally you may attach too much significance to one cause or person and become too fanatical and obsessive. Problems also associated with this seventh Chakra if it is blocked are depression, chronic exhaustion and over sensitivity to light or sound.

You can also feel disconnected from the element of earth and lack stability, security, practicality and groundedness.

A blocked Crown Chakra will simply not allow an abundant life to manifest. When you have a blocked Crown Chakra you may feel destructive, frustrated, angry and depressed.

Physically you may feel drained, stressed and lack the energy to carry out most things. You may feel that life is passing you by and that others are enjoying life and you are just an onlooker. You may feel isolated, lonely and unmotivated. You may experience a tremendous amount of bad luck that has a knock on effect in all aspects of your life.

Chakra Clearing allows blocked chakras to be open, clear and receptive to positive and harmonious energy that needs to flow freely throughout the body, chakras and aura. Blocked chakras that do not allow positive energy to flow can cause all manner of illnesses and ailments and can even increase negative energy to be drawn to the aura. The aura is the invisible human energy field that holds the chakras and can attract and repel both negative and positive energies. A clear, bright aura will attract positive energies and repel negative ones, whereas as a stained, tinged or damaged aura can only attract negative energy which takes the form of negative situations, people and circumstances being drawn towards the individual. Effectively they become a bad luck magnet. This is because negative energy attracts more of the same towards it and an individual can lurch from one bad luck event to the next without the benefit of the 'lucky' positive energy.

This bad luck then becomes a vicious circle as more and more negative energy floods the body, mind and soul bringing bad luck events and making physical and mental illness more likely.

Sunshine Clearing

To clear, energise and awaken your Crown Chakra use the power of the Sun. On a sunny day, in a place of nature stand comfortably and open your arms wide with your palms upturned to 'capture' the Sun's powerful and healing energy. With the 'captured' energy within your cupped hands, place the energy onto the crown of your head. Repeat this process seven times. Each time breathe deeply and imagine a golden energy entering your body via the top of your head.

Moonshine Clearing

You can also use the powerful energy of a Full Moon to enhance the Sun energy you already captured. Repeat the same process as with the Sunshine exercise standing under the Moon. But this time visualise a silver energy entering your body via the top of your head.

Coin Cleaning

Collect together any copper, gold or silver coloured loose change from your purse, wallet, car, piggy bank or from the back of the sofa.

You can imagine that coins get into the hands of many thousands - perhaps millions of hands throughout their lifetime. Some of the people who have handled the coins now in your possession may have lots of negative energy and bad luck. This negative energy and bad luck can 'rub off on you' by just handling the coins.

Negative energy can affect your health, your prosperity, your relationships and your ability to succeed. Even worse it can multiply and cause problems to get much worse. Negative energy can be so harmful. Negative energy can surround you and cloak you and cause you to experience bad luck, bad experiences and make bad choices.

If you want to attract money, wealth and abundance, then you must rid as much negative energy as possible.

So take your coins and put them in a solution of half salt and half vinegar. Any vinegar will be ok - white, cider, malt or wine vinegar.

Separate the copper coins. These coins only need a very short time in the solution. Just 30 - 60 seconds and no more. Rinse very well with clean water.

As for the silver and gold coins they can soak in a salt and vinegar solution for longer.

Let the coins soak for around 10 - 20 minutes. If your coins are still grubby repeat the salt and vinegar process.

Rinse well in clean water and dry them well.

So now you have a collection of shiny coins and you are going to use a form of Magic to allow the coins to create positive energy.

When you can harness positive energy, then this is where you experience good luck, happy events, windfalls, lottery wins, gambling wins etc.

In a glass dish, spread your coins out so all are exposed. Place this dish at a window and leave there overnight so the coins can soak up the very positive energy emanating from the Moon. A Full Moon would be perfect but any phase of the Moon will be ok. Don't worry if you cannot physically see the Moon as its special energy is still present.

Next day turn your coins over and allow them to be exposed to the energy of the sun. A hot and sunny day would be ideal. Don't worry if it is cloudy and you cannot physically see the sun as its special energy is still present.

In the evening as dusk falls. Take some olive oil and preferably some form of mint. Soak some fresh mint leaves, dried mint leaves or a drop or two of peppermint essential oil into the olive oil. Mix with your finger.

At this put on any silver or gold jewellery you have.

Next rub a small amount of olive oil into the coins and say aloud these words 3 times.

"I charm thee now for wealth return a hundred-fold Of copper, of silver and of gold. With power imbued from both the Moon and sun Bring forth to me With harm to none So mote it be!"

Buff the oiled coins with a soft cloth.

Now your coins are ready to be spent. When you spend them do so eagerly and benevolently on positive things such as gifts for loved ones, lottery tickets, or as tips for good service. Do not use the coins to pay bills, as bill paying always has negative connotations.

Your Magical Journal

A Magical Journal also known as a Book of Shadows is a magical reference book containing Spells, a journal of your spiritual journey, correspondences, your dreams and aspirations, affirmations and much more...

If you are serious about developing your Spell Casting abilities, you should consider getting your own Magical Journal. This could be a simple exercise book, or something more elaborate, like a leather-bound manuscript book engraved with your name and the "Book of Shadows" legend.

Your Magical Journal needn't just be about Spells. It can start simply and then grow to include the information concerning your development and your Spell Work. Your Magical Journal is very personal and individual. It can contain many topics and pieces of information.

In fact your Magical Journal can include whatever you choose. A Magical Journal is essential to an aspiring Spell Caster.

Essentially it will be a record of all your Magical workings, Spells cast, results, and all the knowledge you accumulate along this path you have chosen. It will be a source of reference for you. Not only for the information you need to conduct yourself on your journey of achievement, but also a measure and gauge of your success. There will be progress almost immediately on your quest for your goals and you must be able to recognise it straight away.

You might wish to include the following:

- Your Affirmations
- Your Goals
- Your Spiritual Journal
- Spells and Outcomes
- Calendar of Moon Phases
- References
- Spiritual and Magical Research and Resources
- A Record of Dreams
- Herb Lore

There are many resources, particularly on the Internet, for the creation and maintenance of your Magical Journal. But remember always, such a Journal is individual to you, and you need pay no attention to others in this respect.

Other Titles by Alizon

Here is a list of other eBooks written by Alizon, available on Amazon, or her website.

How to be a Witch: Secrets of the Coven Revealed! (US store)

- Free on Kindle Unlimited, or \$3.99

How to be a Witch: Secrets of the Coven Revealed! (United Kingdom store) - Free on Kindle Unlimited, or £2.31

Introduction to the Tarot (PDF) - FREE

Psychic Ability Guide (PDF) - FREE

Visit her eBook page on her website for more details.

alizons-psychic-secrets